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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended 30 September 2011

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of TOWER Life (N .Z.) Limited,
incorporating the financial statements and auditors’ report, for the year ended 30 September 2011.

With the unanimous agreement of all shareholders, the Company has taken advantage of the reporting
concessions available to it under Section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993.

The Board of Directors of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited authorised these financial statements presented
on pages 3 to 40 for issue on 26 January 2012.

For and on behalf of the board:

/4_

Director
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2011

Premium revenue from insurance contracts
Less: Outwards reinsurance expense

Net premium revenue
Investment revenue

Net operating revenue

Claims expense

Less: Reinsurance recoveries revenue

Net claims expense

Change in life insurance contract liabilities
Change in life investment contract liabilities
Life insurance expenses

Life investment expenses

FuturePlan debenture finance costs

Net claims and operating expenses

Financing costs
Interest expense

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense
Profit from operations

Note

BWWw

16
16
6a
6b

6c

Total profit and comprehensive income for the year attributed to

shareholders

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2011 2010
$000 $000
30,518 31,193
(10,354) {10,205)
20,164 20,088
40,617 121,353
60,781 142,341
60,198 61,541
(8,625) (7,408)
51,573 54,133
(10,855) 25,740
(834) 2,167
12,371 13,602
237 206

- 2,275
52,492 98,123
2 7,850

8,289 36,368
5,133 31,610
3,156 4,758
3,156 4,758

i=g
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 September 2011

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Intercompany receivables

Prepaid tax asset

Policyholder loans

Liabilities ceded under reinsurance

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Intercompany payables
Derivative financial liabilities
Provisions

Taxation payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities
Life investment contract liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity
Contributed equity
Retained earnings

Total equity

The Directors authorised these financial statements for issue on 26 January 2012.

ireCtor /

Note

20

18
12
7o

16
7c

14
15

2011 2010
$000 $000
15,926 13,617
29,665 32,088
613,882 655,396
69,106 63,019
1,402 2,649
10,684 23,476
4,862 5,610
13,813 10,716
- 21
759,340 806,592
9,717 10,621
2,069 31,077
1,903 1,652
45 181
4,195 2,212
770 3,806
683,621 699,504
28,084 31,759
730,404 780,812
28,936 25,780
10,000 10,000
18,236 15,780
28,936 25,780
7

-

97/

DirectW

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2011

Year ended 30 September 2011
At the beginning of the year

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income

At the end of the year

Year ended 30 September 2010
At the beginning of the year

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income

Transactlons with shareholders
Dividends paid
Total transactions with shareholders

At the end of the year

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Attributed to shareholders

Contributed

equity Retained earnings Total
$000 $000 $000
10,000 15,780 25,780
- 3,156 3,156

- 3,156 3,156
10,000 18,936 28,936
10,000 20,246 30,246
- 4,758 4,758

- 4,758 4,758

- (9,224) (9,224)

- (9,224) (9,224)
10,000 15,780 25,780
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Premium revenue

Reinsurance revenue

Interest received

Dividends received

Investment income

Payments to policyholders
Reinsurance payments

Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Net receipts from financial assets

Net cash inflow from investing activitles’

Cash flows from financing activities
Net advances (to)/from subsidiaries
Repayment of Futureplan debenture
Payment of dividends

Net cash outflow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

20

2011 2010
$000 $000
31,135 33,715
10,505 5,518
18,106 58,389
2,502 2,194
21,334 (1,427)
(69,609) (93,493)
(11,473) (10,762)
(6,408) (6,300)
- (7,850)
(3,908) (20,016)
33,978 65,139
33,978 65,139
(27,761) -
- (25,021)

el (gl@
(27,761) (34,245)
2,309 10,878
13,617 2,739
15,926 13,617

The statements of cash flows presents the net changes in cash fiow for financial assets. TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited considers that
knowledge of gross receipts and payments is not essential fo understanding the activities of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited and it is considered
acceptable to report only the net changes in cash flow for these items. This is based on the fact that either the tumover of these items is quick,

the amounts are large, and the maturities are short.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have
been applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

GENERAL INFORMATION

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Directors on 26 January 2012.
TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited (the Company) is a New Zealand incorporated life insurance company incorporated under the
New Zealand Companies Act 1993, domiciled in New Zealand and an issuer in terms of the Securities Act 1978.

The address of its registered office is:
Level 11
TOWER Centre
22 Fanshawe Street
Auckland Central
New Zealand

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are for the Company as a separate legal entity. The Company is designated as a profit-
oriented entity for financial reporting purposes.

This financial report has been prepared in accordance with the New Zealand Companies Act 1993 and the Financial
Reporting Act 1993.

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of life insurance. The Company operates in New Zealand. The
financial report of the Company has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (NZ GAAP). It complies with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS)
and other applicable financial reporting standards, as appropriate for profit-oriented entities.

Entity's owners or others do not have power to amend after issue.

Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The financial statements and notes of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis with any exceptions noted in the accounting policies
below.

PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING CONDUCT OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

The life insurance operations of the Company comprise the selling and administration of contracts which are classified as
either life insurance contracts or life investment contracts. Contracts that include both investment and insurance elements
are separated into these two elements and reported accordingly.

Life insurance contracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as significant if, and
only if, an insured event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenarios
that lack commercial substance. Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on the occurrence
of a specified event such as death, injury or disability caused by accident or illness. The insured benefit is either not linked,
or only partly linked, to the market value of the investments held by the life insurer, and the financial risks are substantially
borne by the life insurer. Any products that do not meet the definition of a life insurance contract are classified as life
investment contracts.

Life investment contracts include investment-linked contracts where the benefit amount is directly linked to the market
value of the investments held. While the underlying assets are registered in the name of the life insurer and the investment-
linked policy owner has no direct access to the specific assets, the contractual arrangements are such that the investment-
linked policy owner bears the risks and rewards of the investment performance. The life insurer derives fee income from
the administration of investment-linked policies.

Participating policyowner benefits, both vested and unvested, are treated as expenses when incurred and liabilites until
paid.

Page 7 ch




TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING CONDUCT OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS (cont.)

For the purposes of this financial report, holders of life insurance and life investment contracts are referred to as
policyholders.

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Premium revenue

Life insurance coniracts

Premiums on life insurance business are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Only those amounts
earned by providing services and bearing risks are treated as revenue. Other premium amounts received are similar to
deposits and are recognised as an increase in policy liabilities. Where it is not practicable to split out the two
components, all premiums have been recognised as revenue. Where policies provide for the payment of amounts of
premiums on specific due dates, such premiums are recognised as revenue when due. Unpaid premiums are recognised
as revenue only during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender values of the policies concerned. Other
premiums are recognised as revenue on a cash received basis.

Life investment contracts

Under life investment contracts the Company receives deposits from policyholders and those funds are invested on
behalf of the policyholders. There are no premiums recognised as revenue in respect of these contracts. Amounts
received comprise an origination fee and ongoing management fee or amounts credited directly to investment contract
liabilities and recognised in the change in value of the investment contract.

(b) Fee and other revenue

Fee revenue on investment contracts and other services provided by the Company is recognised in the period the
services are provided.

(c) Investment revenue

Dividends, property income, interest, realised gains/losses and unrealised gains/losses on investment assets are brought
to account in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Dividends and distributions
Revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends are recorded as income at the date
the shares become “ex-dividend”.

Property income
Property income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Fair value gains and losses
Fair value gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised through the statement of

comprehensive income.
(d) Claims expense

Life insurance coniracts

Claims are recognised when the liability to a policyholder under a life insurance contract has been established or upon
notification of the insured event. Claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal components. Claims on risk
business are treated as an expense and are recognised when a liability to the policyholder is established.

Life investment contracts

There is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Surrenders and withdrawals which relate to life
investment contracts are treated as a movement in life investment contract liabilities. Other claim amounts are similar to
withdrawals and as such do not relate to the provision of services or the bearing of risk. Accordingly, they are not
expenses and are treated as movements in life insurance contract liabilities.

< B
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TOWERLIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

(e) Basis of expense apportionment

All operating expenses in respect of life insurance or life investment contracts have been apportioned between policy
acquisiticns, policy maintenance and investment management expenses with regard to the objective when incurring the
expense and the outcome achieved.

The apportionment process is adopted by applying the following methodology:

(i) Expenses that can be directly identifiable and attributable to a particular class of business are not apportioned.

(i) Expenses directly attributable to the participating and non-participating classes of business are apportioned based on
appropriate cost drivers.

(iii) Commission expenses that cannot be allocated to a class of business, for example volume bonuses, are apportioned
on the basis of new business and renewal commissions of each class, allowing for limits implied by the basis of adviser
remuneration.

(iv) Investment expenses are apportioned to the classes of business on the mean balance of assets under management.

(v) Other expenses that cannot be allocated to a particular class of business are apportioned to the classes of business
based on appropriate cost drivers, including number of new policies issued and related premiums, number of new units
issued, mean balances of assets under management, average number of policies in-force and time and activity based

allocations,

(f) Policy acquisition costs
The actuary, in determining the life insurance contract liabilities, takes account of the deferral and future recovery of
acquisition costs which are capitalised by way of movement in life insurance contract liabilities, then amortised over the

period in which they will be recoverable

{(g) Outwards relnsurance
Premiums ceded to reinsurers under insurance contracts held by the Company are recorded as an outwards reinsurance
expense and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of indemnity of the reinsurance

contract.

{h) Reinsurance recoveries

Reinsurance recoveries are recognised as revenue. Amounts recoverable are assessed in accordance with the terms of
the reinsurance contracts, which is in a manner similar to the assessment of outstanding claims. Recoveries are measured
as the present value of the expected future receipts, calculated on the same basis as the provision for outstanding claims.

() Financing costs
Financing costs include interest on internal and external debt (borrowing costs).

() Taxation

Current taxation

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit
or tax loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) fo the extent that it is unpaid
(or refundable).

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences

arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabllities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax base of those items.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets are recovered or liabilities settled, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of the other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in

equity.

Page 9
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Tax consolidation

The Company is part of the TOWER tax consolidated group of which TOWER Limited is the head entity. All members of the
tax consolidated group are jointly and severally liable for the tax liabilities of the Group.

income tax expense
The income tax expense is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period, based on the income tax rate for each

jurisdiction and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and unused
tax losses.

Life insurance tax
From 1 July 2010, life insurers have been subject to a new tax regime. Two tax bases are maintained; the shareholder base

which is subject to tax on life risk products (premiums less claims) and net investment income from shareholder funds, and
the policyholder base which Is subject to tax on net investment income from policyholder funds. The life insurer pays tax on
both bases at the prevailing corporate tax rate of 30% (2010: 30%). As the life insurer is taxed as proxy for the policyholder,
returns to policyholders are tax exempt.

Transitional provisions are included in the new regime which effectively maintains the historical tax freatment for most
policies in force on 30 June 2010 for a period of time {five years in most cases). Under the previous tax regime, the life
office base was subject to tax on investment income less expenses plus underwriting income, and tax was calculated on the
policyholder base as benefits accrued to policyholders under the policies. The life insurer paid tax on the higher of the two
bases at the company tax rate of 30% (2010: 30%).

GST

All revenues, expenses and certain assets are recognised net of goods and services taxes (GST) except where the GST is
not recoverable. In these circumstances the GST is included in the related asset or expense. Receivables and payables are
reported inclusive of GST. The net GST payable to or recoverable from the tax authorities as at balance date is included as
a receivable or payable in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statements of cash flows on a net basis to the extent that the GST is not recoverable and has
been included in the expense or asset.

(k) Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in New Zealand
dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the Company transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency using the exchange rates in effect at the transaction dates. Monetary items receivable or payable in a
foreign currency, including forward exchange contracts, are translated at reporting date at the closing exchange rate.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss are
reported as part of their fair value gain or loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or retranslation of monetary items at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(I) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions and other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(m) Receivables
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Due to the short term nature of these assets the recoverable value, i.e.

allowing for doubtful debts, will generally be the fair value.

Page 10 pWC



TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

(n) Assets backing Insurance businesses

All assets held within the insurance business are assets backing the policy liabilities of the life insurance business.
These assets are managed under the TOWER Limited Group's Risk Management Statement on a fair value basis
and are reported to the Board on this basis. The Company has therefore deemed that these assets should be
meas ured at fair value through profit or loss wherever the applicable standard allows.

Fair value is determined as follows:

- cash assets and bank overdrafts are carried at face value which approximates fair value;

- shares, fixed interest securities, options and units in trusts listed on stock exchanges are valued at the quoted
bid price of the instrument at balance sheet date;

- unlisted fixed interest securities, are recorded at amounts based on valuations using rates of interest equivalent
to the yields obtainable on comparable traded investments at balance date;

- unlisted unit trusts are recorded at fund managers’ quoted redemption prices; and

- recesivables are carried at book value, which is the best estimate of fair value, as they are settled within a short
period.

(o) Derivative and other financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All purchases and sales of financial assets classifed as fair value through profit or loss that require delivery within
the timeframe established by regulation or market convention ("regular way" purchases and sales) are recognised
at trade date, which is the date the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets. Loans and receivables are
recognised at settlement date, which is the date that the assets are delivered or received.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
on an active market. The Company's loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables, policyholder
loans and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of financial assets that are either held for trading or
designated on initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classifed in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Designation by
management takes place when it is necessary to eliminate or significantly reduce measurement or recognition
inconsistencies or if related financial assets or liabilities are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. All derivatives entered
into by the Company are classified as held for trading as the Company does not apply hedge accounting.

(Vi) Fair value

The fair value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value is determined based
on available market prices or using appropriate valuation methods. Financial instruments carried at fair value are
categorised into the three level fair value hierarchy based on significance of inputs used in the measurement. Level
1 includes inputs of quoted prices in active markets for identical assets on liabilities. Level 2 includes inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly. Level 3 includes inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

(iv) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

(p) Policyholder loans

Loans made to policyholders are recognised initially at fair value. The corresponding policy surrender value is held
as collateral for the loans in case of non-payment and consequently the Company's exposure to bad debt risk is
negligible. Interest is receivable on the loans at the applicable rates.

(q) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses annually whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be
close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
or cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assst.
Impairment losses are recognised In those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount (in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease).

(i) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, with the exception of those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
or Impairment at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that the
estimated future cash flows of the asset have been impacted as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the intial recognition of the financial asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the assets'
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest

rate.

For all financial assets, other than trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly.
For trade receivables the carrying amount is reduced via an allowance account, against which an uncollectible trade
receivable is written off. A trade receivable is deemed to be uncoliectible upon notification of insolvency of the debtor
or upon reciept of similar evidence that the Company will be unable to collect the amount. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed when, in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
initially recognised.

In respect of financial assets carried at amortised cost, with the exception of trade receivables, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised. Subsequent recoveries of trade receivables previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.

(r) FuturePlan debenture
The FuturePlan debenture is stated at cost plus compounded accrued interest based on the annual rate of return of

a supporting portfolio of fixed interest securities.

(s} Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial
year which are unsettled.

(t) Employee entitlements

Provision is made for employee entitlements for services rendered up to the balance date. This includes salaries,

wages, bonuses, annual leave and long service leave, but excludes share-based payments. Liabilities arising in

respect of employee entitiements expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their

nominal amounts. Al other employee entitiements are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash

outflows to be made in respect of services provided up to the balance date. In determining the present value of

future cash outflows, discount rates used are based on the interest rates attaching to government securities which

have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. @}

Page 12 pWC




TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

(u) Provisions

Provisions are only recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event or
decision, and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
recognised at the best estimate of future cash flows discounted to present value where the effect is material.

(v) Life insurance liabilities

The Company'’s life insurance liabilities are split between life insurance contracts and life investment contracts. Life insurance
contracts are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of NZ IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. Life investment contracts
are accounted for in accordance with NZ JAS 18 Revenue and NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Life insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Life investment contracts are those
contracts with no insurance risk, but which give rise to a financial asset/and or liability under NZ IAS 39. Contracts that contain
a discretionary participating feature are also classified as life insurance contracts.

(i) Life investment contract liabilities

These contracts are designated at inception as at fair value through profit or loss and subsequently measured at fair value with
any change in value being recognised in the income statement. Fair value is the current value of units plus investment
fluctuation reserves subject to a minimum of current surrender value.

The Company designates these investment contracts to be measured at fair value through profit or loss because it eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets and
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on different basis.

(i) Life insurance contract liabilities
The financial reporting methodology used to determine the value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred to as Margin on

Services (MoS).

Under MoS the excess of premium received over claims and expenses, ‘the profit margin’, is recognised over the life of the
contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder ‘the service', hence the term Margin on
Services.

Life insurance contract liabilities are determined using either the projection method or accumulation method as referred to in
note 27. Under the projection method the policy liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows
using best estimate assumptions about the future. When the benefits under the life insurance contract liability are linked to the
assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on the expected future earnings rate on those assets. Where the benefits
are not linked to the performance of the backing assets, a risk free discount rate is used. The risk free discount rate is
determined by the Chief Actuary based on the zero coupon swap rates, depending on the nature, structure and term of the
contract liabilities.

The assumptions used in the calculation of the policy liabilities are reviewed at each reporting date. A summary of the
significant actuarial methods and assumptions used is set out in Note 17.

{w) Capital Guarantees
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks

and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative.

(x) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recognised at fair value less direct issue costs.

(y) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with the current year.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Company makes estimates and assumptions in respect of certain key assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key areas where critical accounting estimates are applied are noted
below.

(a) Policy liabilities

Policy liabilities for life insurance contracts are computed using statistical or mathematical methods, which are expected to give
approximately the same results as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract. The computations are made by
suitably qualified personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles. The
methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the particular classes of life insurance business written.

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities and related assets are:

- the cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance contracts;

- mortality and morbidity experience on life insurance products, including enhancements to policyholder benefits;

- discontinuance experience, which affects the Company's ability to recover the cost of acquiring new business over the lives of

the contracts; and
- the amounts credited to policyholders’ accounts compared to the returns on invested assets.

In addition, factors such as regulation, competition, interest rates, taxes, securities market conditions and general economic
conditions affect the level of these liabilities. In some contracts, the Company shares experience on mortality, morbidity,
persistency and investment results with its customers, which can offset the impact of these factors on profitability from those
products. Detalls of specific actuarial policies and methods are set out in Note 17.

(b) Llabilities ceded under reinsurance

Liabilities ceded under reinsurance are also computed using the above methods. In addition, the recoverability of these assets
is assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that the balance is reflective of the amounts that will ultimately be received, taking
into consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk. Impairment is recognised where there is objective evidence that
the Company may not receive amounts due to it and these amounts can be reliably measured.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

3. Premium revenue

Life insurance premiums

Life investment premiums

Total life premium revenue

Less: Deposiis recognised as an increase in policy liabilities

Life insurance premiums recognised as revenue

Less: Reinsurance expense
Total net premium revenue

4, Investment revenue
Fixed Interest securities
Interest income

Net realised gain

Net unrealised gain

Equity securities ©
Dividend income

Net realised loss

Net unrealised (loss)/gain

Property securities
Property income

Net realised gain

Net unrealised gain

Other @

Other investment income
Net realised gain

Net unrealised gain

Total investment revenue
Total investment revenue
Total net realised gain
Total net unrealised gain

2011 2010
$000 $000
30,541 34,322
396 469
30,937 34,791
(419) (3,598)
30,518 31,193
(10,354) (10,205)
20,164 20,988
18,105 19,776
1,467 898
454 825
20,026 21,499
2,501 2,194
(3,075) (1,817)
(9,256) 16,182
(9.830) 16,559
2,072 2,010
426 6
1,631 3,679
4,129 5,695
72 12,257
18,617 28,641
7,603 36,702
26,292 77,600
22,750 36,237
17,435 27,728
432 57,388
40,617 121,353

" The income and loss in these categories has been generated by financial assets designated on initial recognition at fair

value through profit or loss.

@ Other investment income has been generated by derivative financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for

trading at fair value through profit or loss.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

5. Claims expense
Life insurance claims
Life investment contract payments

Total life claims and payments
Less: Withdrawals recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities

Life insurance claims recognised as expense

Less: Reinsurance proceeds received
Total net claims expense

6. Other expenses
(a) Life insurance contracts
Policy maintenance costs:
Commission
Other maintenance costs
investment management expenses
Total life insurance expenses

(b) Life investment contracts
Policy maintenance costs:
Commission

Other maintenance costs

Total life investment expenses

Total underwriting expenses
(c) Financing costs

Interest expense
Total financing costs

2011 2010
$000 $000
68,346 95,328
3,238 3,527
71,584 98,855
(11,386) (37,314)
60,198 61,541

8,625 7,408
51,573 54,133

2,421 2,351
6,039 7,625
3,911 3,726
12,371 13,602
11 16
226 190
237 206
12,608 13,808
- 7,850

- 7,850

In 2010, interest of $7,850,000 was incurred by the Company in respect of tax losses generated by other members of the TOWER
tax consolidated group used by the Company for which payments had been outstanding. The interest was calculated using the

average return on the Company's assets for the relevant period.

No audit fees were paid by the Company to its auditors during the year (2010: nil). TOWER New Zealand Limited paid all fees for
audit services provided to the Company for the year ended 30 September 2011.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

7. Taxation

(a) Analysis of taxation expense - current and deferred
Current taxation

Deferred taxation

Over provided in prior years

Income tax expense for year

Income tax expense attributed to policyholders
Income tax expense attributed to shareholders

The tax expense recognised can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before taxation
Continuing operations

Income tax at the current rate of 30% (2010: 30%)

Taxation effect of non deductible expenses/ non assessable revenue:
Life insurance companies permanent differences

Change in tax rates

Recognition of prior period current tax

Non taxable policyholder Australasian equity (gains)/iosses

Release of deferred tax liability on policyholder Australasian equity (gains)losses
Non deductible losses/(income) from PIEs

Benefit of imputation credits received

Deduction available on redemption of FuturePlan Debenture
Adjustment to value of prepaid tax

Other

Taxation expense

2011 2010
$000 $000
8,219 31,610

(3,015) -

(71) -
5133 31,610
4,798 25,700
335 5910
5133 31,610
8,289 36,368
2,487 10,910
6,354 19,468
(59) -
@) 1,311
3,055 -

(2917) :
1,387 (1.221)
(517) (364)

= (2,656)
(4,590) 4,590
- (428)
5133 31,610

Certain life insurance policies issued prior to 1 July 2010 are not taxable on accounting profits, but instead on a formula pursuant to the Income Tax Act

2007. The life insurance companies permanent differences represent the amount of accounting (profityloss from life insurance policies reported in the

period which is not (taxable Ydeductible.

In May 2010, legislation was passed to reduce the company tax rate from 30% to 28%. This Is effective for the Group from 1 October 2011. The
financial effect of the change in tax rate has been taken into account in these financial statements and reduces deferred tax assets and liabilities by

$55,000 {(2010: $NIL) on a net basis.

(b) Prepaid tax assets

A prepaid tax asset of $10,684,000 (2010: $23,476,000) is recognised in the financial statements of the Company as at 30 September 2011. The

Company prepaid tax asset balance recognised is after the amount expected to be utilised to meet the policyholders’ current tax liabilities. The amount

recognised in 2011 includes a write-back of the $4,590,000 impairment made in 2010. The prepaid tax asset balance is predominantly owned by the
policyholders and reflects the amount now expected to be utilised to meet future policyholder tax liabilities as they arise. A refund of the prepaid tax is
no longer being sought from inland Revenue. As this time it is estimated that prepaid tax will be fully utilised by the end of the 2014 financial year.

Changes in taxation laws or the Company's business activities could impact the timeframe for utilisation of the prepaid tax asset.

Analysed as:
Current
Non current

2011 2010
$000 $000
4,217 23,476
6,467 -

10,684 23,476
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

7.  Taxation (cont.)

(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2011

Movements in deferred taxation assets
Provisions and accruals

Total deferred tax assets

Movements in deferred taxation liabilities
Unrealised gains

Receivables

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax

2010

Movements in deferred taxation assets
Provisions and accruals

Unrealised losses

Total deferred tax assets

Movements in deferred taxation liabllities
Unrealised gains

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax

(d) iImputation credit account

Opening Intercompany Chargedi  Charged to Closing
balance Transfer (credited) to equity balance
profit and
loss
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
21 - (21) - -
21 - (21} - -
3,806 - (3,107) - 699
- - 71 - 71
3,806 - (3,036) - 770
(3,785) - 3,015 - {770)
Opening Intercompany Charged/  Charged to Closing
balance Transfer (credited) to equity balance
profit and
loss
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
102 - (81) - 21
17,527 - (17,527) - -
17,629 - (17,608) - 21
- - 3,808 - 3,806
- - 3,806 - 3,806
17,629 - {21,414) - {3,785)

TOWER Limited, the ultimate parent company of the Company, holds an imputation credit account as the representative member of the TOWER

consolidated tax group to which the Company belongs.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

8. Tradeand other receivables
Outstanding premiums and trade receivables
Reinsurance recoveries receivable
Other receivables
Total receivables
Analysed as:

Current

Non-current

9. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fixed interest securities

Government securities

Local authority securities

Other fixed interest securities & short term deposits

Total fixed interest securities

Equity securities
Investments in equities
Multi currency unit trusts
Total equity securities

Property securitles
Property trusts
Total investment In property

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

10. Trade and other payables
Reinsurance payable
Other payables
Accrued investment purchases
Outstanding claims - life and other
Total payables
Analysed as:

Current

Non-current
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2011 2010
$000 $000
25,886 26,503
2,623 4,404
1,256 1,181
29,665 32,088
7,362 9,415
22,303 22,673
29,665 32,088
18,620 23,002
110,390 99,191
228 556 240,154
357,566 362,347
47,986 48,063
129,233 168,651
177,219 216,714
79,007 76,335
79,007 76,335
613,882 655,306
843 1,962
2,010 3,208
188 480
6,676 4,971
9,717 10,621
9,717 10,621
9,717 10,621
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

2011 2010
$000 $000
11. Other liabilities and provisions
Employee provisions 45 181
45 181
Analysed as:
Current 45 181
Non-current - -
_45_ 181
2011 2010
12. Intercompany receivables $000 $000
TOWER Managed Funds Limited 1,402 11
TOWER Insurance Limited - 2,638
1,402 2,649

All intercompany balances are current and repayable on demand. No debts have been written off or forgiven during the

year.

2011 2010
13. Intercompany payables $000 $000
TOWER Asset Management Limited 1,037 1,709
TOWER Managed Funds Limited = 638
TOWER Managed Funds Investments Limited 549 549
TOWER Medical Insurance Limited - 1,376
TOWER New Zealand Limited 46 3,372
TOWER Limited - 4,691
TOWER Health and Life Limited 437 11,735
TOWER Financial Services Group Limited - 7,007

2,069 31,077

All intercompany balances are current and repayable on demand. No debts have been written off or forgiven during the

year.

14. Contributed equity

2011 2010
$000 $000
Ordinary share capital
Fully paid 10,000 10,000
2011 2010
Number of shares Number of shares
Represented by:
Ordinary shares issued 10,000 10,000

All ordinary shares are ranked equally with one vote attached to each fully paid up ordinary share. Ordinary shares issued

have no par value.
TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited has no equity or debt that is publicly traded.
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TOWER L.IFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES T O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

15. Retained earnings
Opening balance at 1 October
Net profit for the year

Dividends paid

Closing balance at 30 September

16. Life insurance business
(a) Policy liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities

Value of policy liabilities — Projection Method
Future policy benefits

Future bonuses

Future expenses

Future profit margins

Future premiums

Value of policy liabilities — Accumulation Method
Future policy benefits

Unvested policy benefits

Net policy liabilities - life Insurance contracts

Reconciliation of movements in insurance contract policy liabilities

Gross life insurance liabilities at 1 October

{Decrease)/increase in net life insurance contract liabilities recognised in

the statement of comprehensive income

Increase in liabilities ceded under reinsurance

Deposits recognised as an increase in policy liabilities

Withdrawals recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities
Gross life insurance liabilities at 30 September

Life investment contract liabilities

Value of policy liabilities — Accumulation Method
Future policy benefits

Net policy liabilities - life investment contracts
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2011 2010
$000 $000
15,780 20,246
3,156 4,758

- (9,224
18,936 15,73'3'
501,823 496,723
158,914 167,558
46,862 46,525
40,405 43,168
(111,352) (106,912)
636,652 647,062
9,449 16,858
23,707 24,867
669,808 688,767
699,504 702,821
(10,855) 25,740
3,007 1,600
23 3,129
(8,148) (33,786)
683,621 699,504
28,084 31,759
28,084 31,759




TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

16.  Life insurance business (cont.)

(a) Policy liabilities (cont.)

Reconciliation of movements in investment contract policy liabilities
Gross life investment contract liabilities at 1 October

(Decrease)/increase in life investment contract liabliities recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income

Deposits recognised as an increase in policy liabilities
Withdrawals recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities
Gross life investment contract liabilities at 30 September

Total gross policy liabilities

Liabilitles ceded under reinsurance

At 1 October

Movement in statement of comprehensive income
At 30 September

Net policy liabilities - non current

Gross policy liabilities analysed as:
Current
Non current

Liabilities ceded under reinsurance analysed as:
Current
Non current

2011 2010
$000 $000
31,759 32,651
(834) 2,167
307 469
(3,238) (3.528)
28,084 31,759
711,705 731,263
(10,718) (9,116)
(3.087) (1,600)
{13,813) {10,716)
697,892 720,547
19,320 19,937
692,385 711,326
711,706 731,263
3,183 3,045
10,630 6,771
13,813 10,716

The Company has designated life investment contract liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The impact on the fair value of these
liabilities resulting from changes in credit risk recognised during tha year is nil (2010: nit), except where the fair value of investment
assets backing these liabilities is impacted by changes in credit risk. Any such impact on the Investment assets is reflected in the

movement in the fair value of these contracts.

(b) Analysis of life Insurance and life investment contract results

Life insurance contracts

Planned profit margins

Experience profits/(losses)

Capitalised loss and reversal

Investment (losses)eamings on assets in excess of policy liabilities of life
companies

Operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders arising from the life
insurance contracts

Life investment contracts

Planned profit margins

Experience profits

Operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders arising from the life
investment contracts

All operating profit arising from life insurance and Investment contracts is affributable to the shareholders.

{c) Solvency requirements of life funds

3,905 4,369
(1,367) 208
(372) 2
718 (130)
2,884 4,445
47 47

225 266
272 313

The minimum equity required to be retained to meet solvency requirements over and above the policy liabilities for the Company is

shown below. The sharsholder equity retained in the Company exceeds these minimum requirements.

Solvency requirement A

Represented by:

Policyholder liabilities

Other ligbilities

Solvency reserve B
Solvency requirement

Assets available to meet solvency reserve:
less solvency reserve
Excess assets above required

. Ne

Coverage of required solvency reserve cB

2011 2010
$000 $000
695,743 758,865
674,191 695,680
18,700 57,272
2,852 5913
695,743 758,865
52,643 50,647
2,852 5913
29,791 44,734
18.46 8.57

The solvency requirement (A) is calculated in accordance with Professional Standard No. 6.01 'Solvency Reserving for Life Insurance
Business' issued by the New Zealand Society of Actuaries. The solvency reserve (B) represents the assets required to be held in

excess of policy and other liabilities in order to meet the solvency requirement.

Under the new Prudential (Insurance Supervision) Act 2010 enacted on the 7 September 2010, the Group will be subject to new
solvency requirements issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand. The Group expects to meet the new solvency requirements that

will apply under the new prudential supervision regime.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

16. Life insurance business (cont.)

{d) Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life insurance

The effective date of the policy liabilities and solvency reserves calculation is 30 September 2011. The Chief Actuary, John Feyter,
BSC, FI~ FNZSA has calculated policy liabilities for TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited. The actuary is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data
from which the policy liabilities have been determined.

This note summarises the assumptions made and the methods adopted for the calculations of policy liabilities and solvency
requirements,

(i) Policy liabilities

Policy liabilities for life insurance business have been determined in accordance with Professional Standard No.3 “Determination of
Life insurance Policy Liabilities" issued by the New Zealand Society of Actuaries for TOWER Life (N.Z.) Ltd. This standard requires
that policy liabilities be calculated on the basis of best estimate assumptions and in a way that allows for the release of planned
margins as services are provided to policyholders.

Valuation of policy liabilities
Policy liabilities comprise the amount required to pay the expected future benefits and expenses after receiving expected future
premiums and investment earnings.

The value of policy liabilities may also include a component for profit margins on existing business that will be eamed as services are
provided to policy owners over the time the relevant policies are held with the Company.

The Company incurs costs in selling new policies. Any costs not recovered by specific charges received from the policy owner at
inception are normally deferred. New business selling costs (or acquisition costs) related to the acquisition of new business are
deferred as long as the underlying policies are expected to be profitable. Where costs are deferred, they are recovered from premiums
or charges receivable in the future.

Methods used to value policy liabilities

(i) Projection method
The projection method uses expected cash flows (premiums, investment income, redemptions or benefit payments, expenses and
profits) to establish the value of policy liabilities. The value of expected future premiums is deducted from the value of expected benefit
and expense payments to arrive at the obligation to policy owners.

(i) Accumulation method
The accumulation method is only used if the results are not materially different from the projection method. Under the accumulation
method for risk policies the policy liability is the sum of the unearned premiums, outstanding claims plus an allowance for claims
incurred but not yet reported. For investment policies, the policy liability is determined as the policy account balance including accrued
interest to the balance date, plus investment fluctuation reserves subject to a minimum of the current surrender value.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

16. Life insurance business (cont.)

(d) Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life insurance (cont.)

(i) Policy liabilities (cont)
Methods used

Where the policy liability is determined by the projection method, actuarial standards require profit to be related to one or
more financially measurable indicators of the provision of service (or related income) called “profit carriers”. The profit
carriers adopted for the major product groups are shown in the table below:

MAJOR PRODUCT GROUPS METHOD |PROFIT CARRIERS (for business
valued using projection method)

Traditional participating Projection |Cost of supportable bonus

Traditional non-participating, renewal and level term and Projection  |Expected death claims

mortgage repayment insurance

Annuities Projection  |Expected annuity payments

Individual lump sum life insurance risk (life, temporary and Projection  |Expected claims

permanent disability and trauma) and disability income

protection insurance

Non-participating investment account Accumulation

Investment linked Accumulation

Group risk insurances and renewable insurances Accumulation
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

16.  LHe insurance business (cont.)

(d) Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life insurance (cont.)

(li) Disclosure of agsumptions

The following table summarises the key assumptions used in the calculation of policyholder liabilities, together with notes on any significant changes in the assumptions:

REQUIRED MPTION

Discount rates: ‘or participating business

BASIS OF ASSUMPTION (By product Group) | ASSUMPTION
As the value of benefits is contractually linked to the performance of assets, a discount The discount rates used are as follows:
rate based on the market return on the asset backing policy liabilities is used. The September 2011 : 4.7% net of tax

discount rate assumed in calculating policyholder liabilities was derived from the expected |September 2010 : 4.7% net of tax from
long term average rates of retum for the asset pool backing this business, based onthe |1 October 2010 to 30 September 2011

ibenchmark asset mix. Discount rates assumed are net of taxation and investment and 4.9% net of tax from 1 October
expense. 2011 onward
Discount rates: for non-participating life Insurance [Risk free discount rates have been adopted for Iife insurance contracts where the benefits The discount rates used are as follows:
[ are not contractually linked to the performance of backing asset pools. The risk free Risk Business {discount rates gross of
discount rates have been determined based on swap rates, depending on the nature tax)
structure and term of the lizbilities. Di t rates are net of investment | N
management expenses. P 2011: 4.4%

September 2010: 4.7%

Annulties (discount rates net of tax)
September 2011: 3.0%

September 2010: 3.2%
Inflation Benefit indexation is before allowance for the proportion of policyholders who take up Benefit indexation
indexation.
Sep ber 2011: 2.0%
5 ber 2010: 2.0%
Future expenses JFutur«a maintenance expenses have been set based on experience analyses conducted |Per policy expenses
by the various companies as well as the actuary's expectations of future expense levels. Participating Business:
September 2011: $97 p.a.
Future investment expenses have been assumed to be at the same percentage of assets September 2010: $93 p.a.
under management as currently applies. Risk business:
September 2011: $153 to $225 p.a.
September 2010: $143 to $197 p.a.
Annulties:
September 2011: $68 p.a.
September 2010: $111 p.a.
Rates of taxation Rates of taxation have been assumed to remain as under current legislation or legislation |The corporate tax rate used is:

substantively enacted at the valuation date. September 2011: 28%

September 2010: 30% for 2011 year,
Risk policy liabilities have been calcutated on a gross of tax basis. As such there is no 28% for future years

allowance for tax within those policy liabilities (excluding GST).

GST rate:
GST has been allowed for at the current rate applicable. September 2011: 15%
ptember 2010: 10%
Mortality — participating business Mortality assumption is based on NZ97 table adjusted for company expsrience. Factors applied to NZ97:
September 2011: 46% to 77%
No changes were made to assumptions at September 2011. September 2010: 46% to 77%
Mortality — risk products Mortality assumption is based on NZ07 table adjusted for company experience. No Factors applied to NZ07:
changes were made to assumptions at Sepiember 2011. September 2011: 52% to 84% for non-
[smokers. Addltional loading for
|smokers.

September 2010: 52% to 84% for non-
smokers. Additional loading for
smokers.

Mortality — annuities

Mortality assumption is based on PML80C10 table projected to 1994 and adjusted for Historical and Future Improvement
company experience, Factors were applied to take into account both historical (from [factors:

1994) and prospective mortallty improvement. A small change was made at September September 2011: 1% to 3% p.a.
2011 to increase mortaiity improvement factors for middle ages. depending on age and sex.
September 2011: 1% to 3% p.a.
depending on age and sex.

Disability — lump sum

Based upon recent company and reinsurer experience adjusting for different product September 2011: 105% to 139% of
definitions. Some wholesale schemes use spacific company experience. reinsurance tables
September 2010: 105% to 139% of
reinsurance tables

Disabiity Income

Standard morbldity tables (CIDA) adjusted for company experience. Specific company  |September 2011: CIDAS5 adjusted
experience is used for certain wholesals schemes. September 2010: CIDA85 adjusted

Assumed disconfinuance rates vary by sub-grouping within a class and vary according to [Annual discontinuance rates;

In both years additional discontinuances

were assumned for ages over 85 ysars.

Discontinuances
the length of time tranches of business have been in-force and other relevant factors, September 2011: 7.5% to 13.5% p.a.
There has been no material change to discontinuance rates as at September 2011. September 2010: 7.5% to 13.5% p.a.
Surrender values Surrender values are based on current practice.

Rates of future supportable participating benefits

Assumed future supportable bonus rates included in policyholder liabilities were set such |Future supportable bonus rates as a
that the present value of policyholder liabllities, allowing for the shareholders’ right to percentage of Sum Assured:

riicipate in distributions, equals the value of assets supporting the business. September 2011: 0.85% to 2.1%
September 2010: 0.65% to 2.1%

Distributions are split bet policyholders and shareholders with the valuation allowing |Future supportable bonus rates as a

for shareholders to share in distributions. The rate of shareholder participation assumed Is percentage of Reversionary Bonus:

25% of the value of bonuses distributed to participating pollcy bject to policy September 2011; 1.1% to 1.9%
conditions. September 2010: 1.1% 10 1.9%
Additional policy bonuses will emerge from the assets representing policyholders’ Future terminal bonus:

unvested benefits. September 2011: 6.4% t0 30.1%

|September 2010: 7.1% to 30.8%
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

16.  Life insurance business (cont.)
(d) Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - Iife Insurance (cont.)
(iii) Effect of changes in actuarlal assumptions during the reporting period

The liabilities for life insurance contracts include the value of future profit margins that are to be released over future reporting perlods. The impact of assumption changes on
non participating business are absorbed by the future profit margins, provided sufficient future margins exist, such that there is no change In the contract liability in the current

period.
For participating business, the impact of assumption changes is absorbed by the value of future supportable bonus. The current period contract llability Is impacted by the
change in cost of current period supportable bonus.

The impact of the assumption changes In the current period on future profit margins in respect of ife insurance contracls (excluding new business contracts which are
measured using assumptions at the valuation date) are shown below.

Where the value of future profit margins are insufficient to absorb the assumption changes, the resulting losses are recognised In the current year via a changed in the
contract liability. These losses may be reversed in subsequent periods should experience be improved.

The Iife contract liability calculations include the use of published market yields, such as govemment bond rates. The changes in these ylelds do not represent actuarial
assumption changes and they impact both life insurance contract liabilities and asset values as at the balance sheet date.

The impact of assumption changes for life insurance cantracts made during the yaar is shown below.

For the year end 30 September 2011

Change In next

Change In future Financial Year's Change In Current Change in
shareholder Shareholder Perlod Contract Current Period
profit margins Planned Profit Liabllity Shareholder Profit
'$000 *$000 '$000 *$000

Assumption change

Mortality and Morbility (388) (45) 32 (372)

Discontinuances - - - -

Expenses 1,468 1386 29 (6}

Other - = - N

For the year end 30 September 2010

Change in next
Change In future Financial Year's Change in Curvent Change in
shareholder Shareholder Period Contract Current Period
profit margins Planned Profit Liability Shareholder Profit
'$000 '$000 "$000 '$000

Assumption change

Mortality and Morbility 198 (5) 29 (6}

Discontinuances 514 25 {169) 34

Expenses 2,901 172 (797) 15¢

Other (224) (28) - -

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is conducted to quanttfy the exposure fo risk of change in the key underlying variables.

Varlable Impact of movement In underlying variable

Expense risk An increase in the level or inflationary growth of exp over i levels will d profit and shareholder equity.

Interest rate risk Depending on the profile of the Investment portfolio, the investment income of the Company wlll decrease as interest rates

{decreass. This may be offset to an extent by changes in the market value of fixed interest investments. The impact on profit and
shareholder equity depends on the relative profiles of assets and Habilities, to the extent that these are not matched.

Mortality rates For insurance contracis providing death benefits, greater mortality rates would lead to higher levels of claims, increasing
associated clalms cost and therefore reducing profit and shareholder eguity.

Morbldity rates The cost of health-related claims depends on both the incidence of policyholders becoming temporarily o totally and
permanently disabled and, in the case of temporary disablement, the duration which they remain temporarily disabled. Higher
than expected incidence and duration would be likely 1o ir clalm costs, profit and shareholders equity.

Discontinuance The impact of the discontinuance rate assumption depends on a range of factors including the type of contract, the surrender
value basis (where appiicable) and the duration in force. For example, an Increase in discontinuance rates at earlier durations of
lifs insurance contracts usually has a negative effect on profit and shareholder equity. However, due o the interplay between the
factors, there is not always an adverse outcome from an increase in discontinuance rates.

Market risk For benefits which are not cantractually linked 1o the underlying assets, the Company is exposed to market risk.

The valuations included In the reported results are calculated using certain assumptions about these variable as disclosed above. The movement in any key variable will
impact the performance of the Company. The table below describes how the change in each assumption will affect the insurance liabilities and show an analysls of the
sensitivity of the profit or loss and equity net of reinsurance to changes in assumptions.

New Zealand Change In following financial year's shareholder profit and equity net of relnsurance
VARIABLE 2011 2010

8000 "$000 _'$000__ ‘000

+10% -10% +10% «10%
Mortality (219) 219 (239) 239
Morbidity Claims Costs (166) 166 (180) 180
Annuitant Mortality 175 (175) 197 (197}
Lapses and Surrenders (80) 80 (83) 83
Renewal expenses (282) 282 (290) 290

i
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16.
(d) Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life insurance (cont.)

Life insurance business (cont.)

(iv) Solvency requirements
Separate to the policy liabllities recognised in the balance sheet, the life insurance companies maintain sufficient capital to meet solvency requirements. These are amounts
required to provide protection against the impact of fluctuations and unexpected adverse circumstances on life insurance companies.

The methodology and basis for determining the Solvency Requirement are in accordance with the requirements of "Profesional Standard No. 5.01 Solvency Reserving for
Life Insurance Business” issued by the New Zealand Society of Actuaries.

{v) Life insurance risk
The life insurance business of the Company involves a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing, acceptance and management of the mortality, morbidity and
longevity risks accepted from policyholders.

Key objectives in managing insurance risk are;
(i) To ensure sound business practices are in place for underwriting risks and claims management;
(ii) To achieve a target return on capttal that is invested in order to take on insurance risk and;
(ili) To ensure solvency and capital requirements are met.

Insurance risks are controlled through the use of underwriting procedures and adequate premium rates and policy charges, all of which are approved by the Chief Actuary.
Tight controls are also maintained over claims management practices to ensure the correct and timely payment of insurance claims.

Underwriting management procedures

Underwriting is managed by a separate department with underwriting limits in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. The Company provides appropriate training
and development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are underwritten on their merits and are generally not issued without having been examined
and underwritten individually, Group risk insurance policies are underwritten on the merits of an employee group as a whole, subject to certain limits for individual members.

Claim management procedures
Claims are managed through a dedicated claims team, with appropriate training and development of staff to ensure procedures are adhered to. Claims are managed to
ensure timely and correct payment in accordance with policy conditions. Claims experience is reviewed regularly and appropriate actuarial reserves are established.

Reinsurance management procedures
The company holds appropriate reinsurance arrangements to limit exposure to individual and catastrophe risks. All reinsurance arrangements are approved by the Chief

Actuary.

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts
The nature of the terms of the insurance contracts written by the Company Is such that certain external variables can be identified on which related cash flows for claim
payments depend. The tables below provide an overview of the key variables upon which the amount of related cash flows are dependent.

Key variables affecting
Type of contract Detalls of contract workings Nature of compensation for claims future cash flows
Non-participating life Guaranteed benefits paid on death, Benefits, defined by the insurance contract are determined by the  [Mortality, morbidity, lapses,
insurance contracts with permanent and temporary disablement or |contract and not directly affected by the performance of underlying |expenses and market
fixed and guaranteed terms |maturity that are fixed and guaranteed and |assets or the performance of the contracts as whole. earnings on assets backing
(Term Life and Disability not at the discretion of the lssuer. the liabilities

including renewable term)

Life annuity contracts These policies provide a guaranted regular | The amount of the guaranteed regular income is set at inception of {Longevity, benefit inflation,
income for the life of the insured for a initial {the policy including any indexation. expenses and market
single premium. earnings on assets backing

the liabilities

Traditional life insurance These policies include a clearly defined Benefits arising from the discretionary participation feature are Mortality, morbidity, lapses,

contracts with discretionary |initial guaranteed sum assured that is based on the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a expenses and market

participating benefits payable on death. The guarantee amount Is [specified type of contract. Operating profit arising from these eamings on assets backing

(endowment and whole of  |increased throughout the duration of the contracts Is altocated between the policyholders and shareholders. |the liabillties

life) policy by the addition of bonuses annually {The amount allocated to policyholders is held as an unvested policy
that once added are not removed. An liability until it is distributed to specific policyholders via bonuses.
additional (terminal) bonus is payable on
claims paid as a result of death or maturity.

Terminal bonus amounts are not
guaranteed.

Investment account The gross value of the premiums received |The payment of the account balance is generally guaranteed, Fees, lapses, expenses and

contracts with discretionary [is invested in the investment account with  |although it may be subject to certaln penalties on early termination. {market earnings on assets

participating features fees and premiums for any associated On certain contracts withdrawals can be deferred over limited time |backing the liabilities

insurance cover being deducted from the
account balance. Interest is credited

periods.

{vi) Concentration of insurance risk
The Company aims to maintain a portfolio of policyholders with a broad spread of insurance risk types, ages, sexes, occupation classes and geographical locations for the

individual and group risk business. The Company uses relnsurance to limit the insurance risk exposure for any one individual. The group risk business unit offers insurance in
respect of groups of employees. The Company is exposed to a greater risk of loss from events affecting a location where groups of insured employees work. The Company
has purchased catastrophe reinsurance to limit the exposure from any one group event.

i
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18.  Life insurance business (cont.)

{vil) Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows

The table below shows the estimated timing of future cash outflows resulting from life insurance contract liabilities. This includes estimated future claims offset by expected future premiums and
reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to the valuation date.

Less than one year One totwo years  Two fo three years Three to four years Four to five years Over five years Total
'$000 '$000 '$000 '$000 '$000 '$000 '$000
Life Insurance contract llabllities
30 September 2011 36,304 33,982 31,278 29,775 27,637 400,321 559,385
30 September 2010 38,204 34,674 32,270 29,864 28,356 394,102 557,370

17. Risk management and financial Instrument information

The financial condition and operating results of the Company are affected by a number of key financial and non-financial risks. Financial risks include market risk, credit risk and financing and
liquidity risk. The non-financial risks include insurance risk, compliance risk and operational risk. The Company’s objectives and policles in respect of insurance risks are disclosed in Note 16,
while the managing of financial risk and non financial risk s set out in the remainder of this section.

These risks are managed through the parent company’s (TOWER Limited) risk mangement policy which is approved by the Board and applies to all companies in the Group, including the
Company. Various procedures are put in place to contro! and mitigate the risks faced by the Company depending on the nature of the risk. The business managers are responsible for managing
thelr risks including operational and li risk. The Company's exposure to all high and critical risks s reviewed by the Group Risk and Compliance team and this expasure Is reported
quarterly to the Group Audit and Compliance Committeee.

The TOWER Limited Board has delegated to the TOWER Limited Group Audit and Compliance Committee the responsibllity to review the effectiveness and efficlency of management processes,
risk management and internal financlal Is and sy for each subsidiary as part of their dutles.

Financial risks are generally itored and lled by selecting appropriate assets to back policy liabilities. The assels are regularly monitored to ensure that there are no material asset and
liability mismatching issues and other risks such as liquidity risk and credit risk are maintained within acceptable limits. For thase Iife insurance and life invesiment contracts where the benefits
paid are directly impacted by the value of the underlying assets, the Company is exposed to the risk of future decreased asset management fees as a result of a decline in assets under

management.
The TOWER Limited Board has delegated to the TOWER Limited Group Investment Committee the responsibility for:

- reviewing ir policy for and policyt funds;

- reviewing the risk management policy and statements in respect of Investment management, including the derivative palicy;

- considering the establishment, adjustment or deletion of limits and counter-party approvals, and the scope of financial instruments to be used In the management of investments;
- reviewing the appointment of external investment managers; and

- monitoring compllance with investment policles and client mandates.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in the fair value of financial Instruments from fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices
(price risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to an individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors sffecting all financlal instruments traded in a market.

{i) Currency risk
Currency risk Is the risk of loss resulting from changes in exchange rates when applied to assets and liabilities or future transactions denominated in a currency that is not the Company's
functional currency.

The TOWER Limited Group Investment Committee sets limits for the management of currency risk arising from Company investments based on prudent international asset management practice.
Regular reviews are conducted to ensure that these limits are adhered fo.

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts in d with its ir 1t policies as economic hedges of foreign currency exposure in investments in international equities
through its holdings in international equities funds. The main foreign currencies exposure of the funds is to the Australian and US dollars, Japanese Yen, Euro, British Pounds and Chinese Yuan.

The impact of reasonably possible ch In the y risk on the Company's shareholders' profit and equity Is included in (f) below.
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17.  Risk management and financial instrument Information (cont.)
{a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future value of cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

The Company manages interest rate risk arising from its interest bearing investments In accordance with TOWER Limited Group Investment
Committee approved policies.

Interest rate risk and other market risks arise in life insurance to the extent that there is a mismatch between the policyholder liabilities and the assets
backing those liabilities. These mismatches could impact current period operating profits.

The primary areas of mismatch for the Company’s life insurance business are:

- For non-participating life insurance contracts, the mismatch between the risk free discount rates used in the policy liability calculations and the
backing asset values.

- For a portion of the life investment contract business, the mismatch between the value of the financial instrument liabilities (including the discount
rates used in their calculation, if applicable) and the backing asset values.

Interest rate and other market risks are managed by the Company through a strategic asset allocation policy and an investment management policy
that has regard to policyholder expectations and risks and to target surplus for both capital adequacy and solvency as advised by the Chief Actuary.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss resulting from the decline in prices of equity securities or other assets. The Company is exposed fo the price risk because
The price risk is managed by diversification of the investment portfolio, which is done in accordance with the limits set by the investment mandates
and monitored by the TOWER Limited Group Investment Committee.

(b) Credlt risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that arises from a counterparty failing to meet their contractual commitment in full and on time, or from losses arising
from the change in value of a trading financial instrument as a result in changes In credit risk of that instrument.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk Is limited to deposits and investments held with banks and other financial institutions as well as credit
exposure to trade customers or other counterparties. For banks and financial institutions the minimum credit rating accepted by the Company is 'A".
Independent ratings are used for customer that are rated by rating agencies. For customers with no external ratings, internally developed minimum
credit quality requirements are applied, which takes into accounts customers’ financial position, past experience and other relevant factors. The
overall exposure to credit risk is monitored on group basis in accordance with the limits set by the TOWER Limited Board.

(i) Credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk exists when the Company enters into contracts or financial instruments with a number of counterparties that are engaged
in similar business activities or exposed to similar economic factors that might affect their ability to meet contractual obligations. The Company
manages concentration of credit risk by credit rating, industry type and individual counterparty.

The significant concentrations of credit risk are outlined by industry type below.

2011 2010
Carrying value Carrying value

$000 $000
New Zealand govemment 18,620 23,002
Other governments 110,390 99,191
Banks 307,241 225,029
Finance institutions 2,941 3,595
Other non-investment related receivables 16,759 33,250
Other industries 20,791 92,225
Intercompany receivables 1,402 2,649
Total financial assets with significant credit exposure 478,144 478,941
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17. Risk management and financlal instrument information (cont.)
(b) Credit risk (cont)

(i) Maximum expostre to credit risk

The Company's maximum exposurs to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or any other credit enhancements is the carrying amount of financial assets held

by the Company at the reporting date, which is as follows:

2011
Carrying value
$000
Cash and cash equivalents 16,926
Rei i ivabl 2,523
Qutstanding premiums and trade receivables 13,641
Unsettled investments sale 596
intercompany receivable 1,402
Fixed Interest securities 357,566
Derivative financlal asset 69,106
Loans receivable 3,362
Interest receivable 14,032
478,144
(i) Credit qualtty of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
The credit quality of financial assats that are neither past due nor impalred can be d by ref to ext
about counterparty default rates:
2011
Credit Exposure by credit rating $000
AAA 123,109
AA 265,905
A 219
Total counterparties with extemal credit rating by Standard and Poor's. 389,233
For exposures with no credit rating, the financlal assets can be classified in the following group:
Group 1 14,236
Group 1A 1,402
Group 2 -
Group 3 70,750
Total counterparties with no extemal credit rating 86,388
Total assets 475,621

Group 1 - trade debtors (less than 6 months old)

Group 2 - trade debtors {more than & months) with some defaults in the past
Group 3 - unrated investments

Group 1A - intercompany receivables (less than & months old)

{iv) Financial assets that would otherwise be past due whose terms have been renegotiated

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the past year (2010:
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2010
Camying value
$000

13,617
4,404
14,706
523
2,849
362,347
63,019
3,891
13,785
478,941

| credit ratings (if applicable) or to historical information

2010
00
23,002
278,079
86,451

389,432

4,718
2,649
24,296
53,442
85,105

474,537
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17. Risk management and financial instrument information {cont.)

{b) Credit risk (cont)

(v) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

The Company considers that financial assets are past due if payments have not been received when contractually due. At the reporting date, the total

carrying value of past due but not impaired assets held by the Company is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31 days 31to60days €1to90days over 90 days Total
As at 30 September 2011 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Reinsurance recoveries receivable 1,348 359 277 539 2,623
Total 1,348 359 F14] 539 2,523
As at 30 September 2010
Reinsurance recoveries receivable 823 315 477 2,789 4,404
Total 823 315 477 2,789 4,404

(vi) Financial assets that are individually Impalired
There were no assets that were individually impaired (2010: Nil).

For policies with a surrender or investment value, outstanding premiums are supported by the underlying assets invested. When outstanding premiums reach
the value of the surrender or investment value, the assets are realised and offset against the outstanding debt. Policles with no surrender value are lapsed

when outstanding premiums exceed a set value and the outstanding premiums are written off.

(c) Financing and liquidity risk

Financing and liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its cash outflows or refinance debt obligations, as they fall due, because of

lack of liquid assets or access to funding on acceptable terms.

To mitigate financing and liquidity risk the Company maintains sufficient liquid assets to ensure that the Company can meet its debt obligations and other cash

outflows on a timely basis.
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17.
(c) Financing and liquidity risk

(i) Financial liabilities by contractual maturily

Risk management and financlal Instrument information (cont.)

The table below summarises the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groups based on the remaining period at the balance date to the contractua! maturity date. The
amounts disclosed are contractual undiscounted cash flows that include interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

The following contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

As at 30 September 2011
Camying  Confractual less than onetotwo two tothree threetofour fourtofive over five

valus cash flows __ one year years years years years years  No maturity  Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Liabilities
Reinsurance payable 843 843 843 - - - - - - 843
Unsettled investment purchases 188 188 188 - - - - - - 188
Derivative financial liabllities 1,903 91,417 91417 - - - - - - 91,417
Life Investment contract liabilities 28,084 28,084 - = - = - - 28,084 28,084
Funds invested guarantee 958 958 - - - - - - 958 958
Intercompany payables 2,069 2,089 2,068 - - - - - - 2,069
Other payables 1,194 1,194 1,194 - - - - - - 1,194
Total Liabilities 35,239 124,753 85711 - - - . - 29,042 124,753

As at 30 September 2010
Carrying  Contractual lessthan onetotwo two tothree threetofour fourtofive over five

valug cash flows _ one year ears @ars years years years  No maturity  Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Liabilities
Reinsurance payable 1,862 1,962 1,862 - - - B e - 1,962
Unsettled investment purchases 480 480 480 - - - - = - 480
Life investment contract liabilities 31,759 31,759 - g - . - - 31,759 31,759
Intercompany payables 31,077 31,077 31,077 - - - - - - 31,077
Funds invested guarantee 8,918 8,918 7,996 - - - - = 922 8,918
Derivative financial liabilities 1,652 4352  (1,122) (629) (289) (36) 215 6,213 - 4,352
Other payables 3,341 3,341 3,341 - - - - - - 3,341
Total Liabilities 79,189 81,889 43,734 (629) (289) (36) 215 6,213 32,681 81,889
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17.  Risk management and financial instrument information (cont.)

(d) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a llability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Fair
values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices at balance date. The fair vaiue of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market are determined using valuation techniques. The valuation techniques used to value life investment contract liabllities are described in Note 16.
Refer below for details of valuation methods used for each remaining category of financial assets and liabliities.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximate thelr fair values.
The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair values of financial instruments.

() Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents reasonably approximates its fair values.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is determined by reference to their quoted price at the reporting date. The fair value of property
investments is determined by reference to external valuations.

(iii) Loans and receivables, frade and other payables

Carrying values of loans and receivables, adjusted for impairment values, and carrying values of trade and other payables reasonably approximate their fair values.

(iv) Derivative financial liabilities and assets
The fair value of derivative financial liabilities is determined by the reference to the quoted market price of the underlying equity securities.

Financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value {(excluding short term amounts held at a reasonable approximation of fair value), are
categorised by the following fair value measurement hierarchy levels:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabllities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for that asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs)

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities categorised by fair value measurement hierarchy levels as at 30 September 2011.

2011 2010
Total Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Derivative financial assets 69,106 - 69,106 63,019 - 63,019
Investments in equity securities/managed funds 177,219 48,008 129,211 216,714 48,084 168,630
Investments in fixed Interest securities 357,566 - 357,566 362,347 - 362,347
Investments in property securities 79,007 - 79,097 76,336 - 76,336
Total financial assets 682,988 48,008 634,980 718,416 48,084 670,332
Total Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 1,803 - 1,903 (1,652) - (1,652)
Life investment contract liabilities 28,084 - 28,084 (31,759) - (31,759)
Total financial liabilities 29,987 - 29,987 (33,411) - (33,411)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financlal assets held by the group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included In Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the Instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs Is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. The Company does not hold any Level 3
investment assets.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on abservable yield curves.
Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments used include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts.

o 1l
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17. Risk management and financial instrument information (cont.)
(e) Derivative financial instruments (cont.)
Derlvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their

fair value, The fair value of interest rate swaps are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the reporting date and are disclosed
below. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the start of the financial year.

The table below details the notional principal amounts (amounts used to calculate payments made on swap contracts), fair values and
remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at reporting date:

Average contracted fixed Notional principal
interest amount Falr value
Outstanding interest rate
swap contracts to receive
fixed pay floating rates 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
% % $000 $000 $000 $000
Less than 1 year 4.17% 0.00% 2,000 - 12 -
1to 2 years 0.00% 6.64% - 3,500 - 134
210 5 years 0.00% 7.84% - 7,900 - 1,077
over 5 years 7.79% 6.66% 367,450 465,750 69,094 60,414

369,450 477,150 69,106 61,625

The foreign exchange forward contracts are settled on a gross basis. All contracts mature within 12 months of the reporting date and their
carrying values reasonably approximate undiscounted cash flows because the impact of discounting is not significant.

Total
contractual Less than
cash flows one year

$000 $000
As at 30 September 2011
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Outflow 91,417 91,417
inflow 89,514 89,514
As at 30 September 2010
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Outflow 87,972 87,972
Inflow 87,714 87,714
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17. Risk management and financial instrument information (cont.)

(f) Sensitivity analysis

The analysis below demostrates the impact of changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices on the Company’s shareholder profit
after tax and equity. The analysis is based on changes in economic conditions that are considered reasonably possible at the reporting date. The
potential impact is assumed as at the reporting date.

(i) Interest rate

The impact of a 50 basls point change (2010: 50 basis point) in New Zealand and International rates on the Company profit after tax is as below.
The sensitivity analysis should assume changes in interest rates only. All other variables are held constant.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equily
$000 $000 $000 $000
Change in variables
+50 basis points (1,033) (1,033) (1,086) (1,086)
-50 basis points 1,033 1,033 1,086 1,086

This analysis assumes that the sensitlvity applies to the closing market yields of fixed interest investments. A paralle! shift in the vield curve is
assumed. The dollar impact of the change In interest rates is estimated by reference to the average duration of the investment assets.

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the reporting
period included in the analysis.

The impact of changes In market interest rates presented in () above excludes life insurance contract liabilities, which are also affected by the
changes in market interest rates that determine the discount rates applicable to these contracts. The table below provides a sensitivity analysis in
respect of changes in interest rates (2010: 50 basis point) as applied to life insurance contract liabilities. A combined effect is necessary to
appreciate the sensitivity of the Company's profit to movements in interest rates.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
$000 $000 $000 $000
Change in variables
+50 basis points 710 710 681 681
-50 basis points (710) (710) (712) (712)

Sensitivity to interest rates has been assessed by reference to internal investigations of the movement in Iife Insurance contract liabilities to
movements in discount rates consistent with that used for internal management reporting.
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17. Risk management and financial instrument Information (cont.)
() Sensitlvity analysis (cont.)

(i) Foreign currency

The table below demonstrates the Impact of a 10% movement of currency rates against the New Zealand dollar on the Company's
shareholder profit after tax and equity. The analysis assumes changes in foreign currency rates only, with all other variables held constant.
The potential impact on the profit and equity of the Company is due to the changes in fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets and
liabilities as at the reporting date.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
$000 $000 $000 $000
Change in variables
10% appreciation of New Zealand dollar (56) (56) (116) (118)
10% depreciation of New Zealand dollar 56 56 116 116

The dollar impact of the change in currency movements is determined by applying the sensitivity to the value of the unhedged international
assets,

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the
reporting period Included in the analysls.

(il}) Equity price

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities will decrease as a result of changes in levels of aquity indices and the value of
indlvidual stocks. The Company holds all of its equities at fair value through profit or loss.

The table below demonstrates the impact of a 10% movement in New Zealand equities on the profit after tax and equity of the Company. The
potential impact is assumed as at the reporting date. The analysis below excludes investment linked business, which is disclosed in note 27.
Investment linked business can be excluded because any asset movement will flow through to the policyholder.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equily profit after tax equity
$000 $000 $000 $000
Change in variables
+10% in New Zealand equities 68 68 74 74
-10% in New Zealand equities (68) (68) (74) (74)

The dollar impagct of the change in the New Zealand equities is determined by applying the sensitivity to the value of the New Zealand
equities. The same applies for international equities.

International equity assets are held via a trust which invests in a number of different countries. The sensitivity for each individual country is
small so a breakdown by country has not been provided.

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the two
reporting periods included in the analysis.

(iv) Other price

Other price sensitivity Includes sensitivity to unit price fluctuations. The unit price risk is the risk that the falr value of investments in property
fund units will decrease as a result of changes in the value of these units. The Company holds all of its investments in property securities at
fair value through profit or loss.

The table below demonstrates the impact of a 10% movement in the value of property funds & international equities on the profit after tax and
equity of the Company. The potential impact is assumed as at the reporting date.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax oequity

$000 $000 $000 $000
Change in variables
+10% property funds 847 847 836 836
-10% property funds (847) (847) (836) (836)
+10% in International equities 197 197 287 287
-10% in International equities (197) (197) (287) (287)

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the two
reporting period included in the analysis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

18. Financial instruments by category

The analysis of financial assets and liabilities into their categories and classes is set out in the following tables:

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Reinsurance recoveries receivable
Outstanding premiums and trade receivables
Unsettled investments sale

Related party receivable

Other receivables

Loans on policy

Derivative financial assets
Investment in listed equity securities
Fixed Interest securities

Property securities
Total financial assets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Reinsurance recoveries receivable
QOutstanding premiums and trade receivables
Unsettled investments sale

Related party receivable

Other receivables

Loans on policy

Derivative financial assets
Investment in listed equity securities
Fixed Interest securities

Property securities

Total financial assets

Liabilities

Reinsurance payables

Unsettled investment purchases
Intercompany payables

Other payables

Derivative financial liabilities

Life investment contract liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Liabilities

Reinsurance payables

Unsettled investment purchases
Intercompany payables

Other payables

Derivative financial liabilities

Life investment contract liabilities
Total financial liabifities
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30 September 2011
d Fair value through profit or loss
Loans an
Total Receivables
Designated  Held for trading
$000 $000 $000 $000
15,926 15,926 - -
2,523 2,523 - -
25,886 25,886 - -
596 596 - -
1,402 1,402 - _
278 278 - -
4,862 4,862 - .
69,106 - - 69,106
177,219 - 177,219 -
357,566 - 357,566 -
75,097 - 79,097 -
734,461 51,473 613,882 69,106
30 September 2010
Fair value through profit or loss
Total Loans and
Receivables
Designated  Held for trading
$000 $000 $000 $000
13,617 13,617 - -
4,404 4,404 . .
26,503 26,503 . -
523 523 - -
2,649 2,649 - .
366 366 - -
5,610 5,610 - -
63,019 - - 63,019
216,714 - 216,714 -
362,347 - 362,347 -
76,335 - 76,335 -
772,087 53,672 655,396 63,019
30 September 2011
Fair value through profit or loss fi"f'_'c.ial
liabilities
Designated Held for trading at amortised
Total cost
$000 $000 $000 $000
843 - - 843
188 - - 188
2,069 - - 2,069
1,194 = - 1,194
1,903 - 1,903 .
28,084 28,084 - -
34,281 28,084 1,903 4,294
30 September 2010
Financial
Fair value through profit or loss liabilities
Designated Held for trading at amortised
Total cost
$000 $000 $000 $000
1,962 = - 1,962
480 - - 480
31,077 = - 31,077
3,341 - - 3,341
1,652 - 1,652 -
31,759 31,759 - -
70,271 31,758 1,652 36,860
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

19. Capital risk management

The Company's objective when managing capital is to ensure that its level of capital is sufficlent to enable it to continue as a

going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders of the Company.

The Company's capital resources are made up of ordinary equity and retained eamings.

TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited shareholder equity
Total capital resources

2011 2010

$000 $000
28,936 25,780
28,936 25,780

The Company measures the adequacy of its capital against published capital standards. Refer to Note 16 (c): Solvency
requirements of life funds. The Company's capital management strategy is incorporated within the TOWER Limited Group's
capital management strategy which, in turn, forms part of the Group's broader strategic planning process overseeen by the

Group Audit and Compliance Committee.

20. Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Reconciliation of cash at the end of the year

Cash at bank and in hand
Deposits at call
Total cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010

$000 $000
1,412 3,162
14,514 10,455
15,926 13.617

The effective interest rate for deposits at call is 3.0% (2010: 3.5%) and the balances primarily mature within three months of

balance date.

(b) Reconciliation of profit for the period to net cash flows from operating activities

Profit attributable to shareholders

Add/(less) non cash items

Impairment of assets

Change in life insurance and life investment contract liabilities
Unrealised (gain)/loss on investments

Decrease in deferred tax

Add/{less) movements in working capital relating to operating activities
Decrease in receivables

(Decrease)/increase in payables
Decrease/(increase) in taxation

Add/(less) other items classlified as investing/financing activities
Loss on repayment of FuturePlan debenture

Net cash outflows from operating activities

21. Contingent liabilities
The Company had no material contingent liabilities at balance date (2010: nil)

22, Capital commitments
The Company had no material capital commitments at balance date (2010: nil)
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3,156 4,758

- 57
(22,820) (4,044)
7,171 (56,640)
(3,015) 21,366
(18,664) (39,261)
3,244 410
(6,.419) 26,969
14,775 (15,168)
11,600 12,211
- 2,276
- 2,276
(3,908) ~(20,076)
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

23. Transactions with related parties

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of TOWER Heaith and Life Limited. The ultimate owner of TOWER Health and Life Limited is TOWER Limited.

Related party and pay t of the Company at the reporting date were as follows:

Related party 2011 2010 Nature of Relationship Type of Transactions
NZ$000  NZ5000

TOWER Health and Life Limited (437) (105) Parent Opersting expenses
TOWER Health and Life Limited - {6,097) Parent Interest
TOWER Health and Life Limited - {5,532) Parent Tax loss
TOWER Asset Management Limited {1,037) (1,709) Fellow subsidiary Operating expenses
TOWER Managed Funds Limited 1,402 {627) Fellow subskilary Operating expenses
TOWER Managed Funds Investments Limited (549) {549) Fellow subsidiary Operating expenses
TOWER Medical insurance Limited - (1.376) Fellow subsidiary Tex losses
TOWER New Zealand Limited - (2,368) Fellow subslidiary Tax losses
TOWER New Zealand Limited - (920) Fellow subsidiary Loan/Advance
TOWER New Zealand Limited (46) (84) Fellow subsldlary Operating expenses
TOWER Limited = (7,504) Ultimate parent Tax losses
TOWER Limited - 2,812 Urtimate parent Interest
TOWER Financial Services Group Limited - (7,007) Parent of TOWER Health & Life Limited  Loan/Advance
TOWER Insurance Limited - 2,638 Fellow subsldiary Tax gains

with its related parties in the normal course of business. Transactions during the year included partial settiement of Intercompany balances and

The G enters into
intercompany dividends as shown below:
Related party 2011 2010 Nsture of Relationship Type of Transactions
___NZS000_ WZ$000
TOWER Health and Life Limied - (4,700) Parent Dividend
TOWER Health and Life Limited - (6,097) Parent Interast
TOWER Health and Life Limited - {5,532) Parent Tex losses
TOWER Health and Life Limited (515) (354) Parent Opersting expenses
TOWER Asset Management Limited (3,655) (3,101) Fellow subsidiary Investment management fees
TOWER Managed Funds Limited (1,624) (2,686) Fellow subsidiary Operating expenses
TOWER Managed Funds Limited - {4,524) Fellow subsidiary Dividend
TOWER New Zealand Limited (2,426) (2,721) Feliow subsidiary Operating expenses
TOWER New Zealand Limited - (2,368) Fellow subsidiary Tax losses
TOWER New Zealand Limited 920 (3,304) Fellow subsidiary Loan/Advance
TOWER Financlal Services Group Limited - {1,753) Parent of TOWER Health & Life Limited Interest
TOWER Financlal Services Group Limited - (12,531) Parent of TOWER Health & Life Limited Tex losses
TOWER Financlal Services Group Limited - 7,155 Parent of TOWER Health & Life Limited Loan/Advance
TOWER Insurance Limited - 2,638 Fellow subsidiary Tax losses
TOWER Limited - (7.504) Ultimate parent Tax losses
(1,376) Feflow subsidiary Tex losses

TOWER Medical Insurance Limited .

During the year ended 30 September 2011, the Company offset lts tax losses for consideration within the TOWER Limited consolidated tax group to the value of §6,637,625 (2010:

$26,673,000).

24. Key management personnel compensation

TOWER New Zealand Limited and TOWER Health and Life Limited paid all key management personnel compensation on behalf of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited for the year ended 30

September 2011.
25. Loans to key management personnel

Tttt includ] lly related parties (2010: NI).

There have been no loans made to direciors and other key management p their p

26, Other transactions with key management personnel
Key management also hold verious policies and accounts with TOWER Life (N.2.) Limited. These are operated in the normal course of business on normal customer terms.
7. d ret: on funds d - life companies
The Company guarantees capital contributed by policyholders together with any declared dividends for the following funds. At balance date the net assets of these funds were:
2011 2010
$000 $000
Capltal Protected Plan - 7.996
VITAL 958 922
Total e 358 8918
28. linked and non linked
Investment Non- Investment linked Non-investment
linked  Investment linked
{inked
2011 2011 2010 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Investment assets 28,084 715,375 31,759 700,273
Other assets - 13,814 - 71,567
Policyholder Habllities (26,084) (683,621} (31,759) (688,787)
Other liabllities - (16,632) 0 (57.273)
Net agsets = = 25780
Retained earnings - A - 13. 780
Net premium income - 20,164 - 20,988
Investment income (184) 40,812 2,897 105,062
Net claims expense - (51.574) - (54,133)
Other operating expenses (237) (12,371) (194) (10,344)
Change in policyholder llabiiities 834 10,855 __{2,188) {25.740)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 403 7,888 535 35,833
Texation credit (131) (5,002) (222) (31.388)
Profit after taxation 212 2,384 313 4,445
| Hocated to policyholders was §193,000 (2010: $2,897,000)

Page 39




TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2011

29. Impact of amendment to NZ IFRS
(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Company.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for
the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 October 2011 or later periods, and the Company has not early
adopted them:

NZIAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ {effective from 1 January 2011). The revised standard amends the definition of a
related party. The amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

NZ IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2013). The standard is the first step in replacing NZ IAS 39
and introduces requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets and liabilities. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the potential effect of this standard.

NZ IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ (effective from 1 January 2013). The standard replaces the guidance on fair value
measurement in existing IFRS literature with a single standard. The standard is not expected to have a material impact on

the financial statements.

Harmonisation Amendments (effective from 1 July 2011). This amends multiple standards to harmonise NZ IFRS with IFRS
and Australian Accounting Standards. The Company is in the process of evaluating the potential effect of the amendments

Improvements to NZ IFRS 2010 includes various amendments effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
and are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing effective 2011 or early adopted by the Company.

The Company has early adopted the following new and amended IFRS’s as of the 1 October 2010:

NZ IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments’ (effective retrospectively from 1 January 2011). The amendment emphasises the
interaction between quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the nature and extent of risks associated with financial
instruments. The change in accounting policy has not resulted in additional disclosures.

30. Impact of Christchurch earthquakes
The Christchurch earthquakes which occurred during the 2011 financial year resulted in Tower Life (N.Z.) Limited incurring

a one off net claims expense of $750,000.

31. Subsequent events
There were no events subsequent to balance date that require adjustment or disclosure within the financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the shareholder of TOWER Life (N.Z) Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of TOWER Life (N.Z) Limited on pages 3 to 40, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 September 2011, the statement of comprehensive income
and statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the
notes to the financial statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of
the matters to which they relate and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) and
International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider the internal controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

We have no relationship with, or interests in, TOWER Life (N.Z) Limited other than in our
capacities as auditors and providers of other assurance, taxation, and advisory services. These
services have not impaired our independence as auditors of the Company.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwc.com/nz
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TOWER New Zealand Limited

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 3 to 40:

@ comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
(ii) comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

(iii) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
30 September 2011, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We also report in accordance with Sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act
1993. In relation to our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2011:

)] we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

(i) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as
appears from an examination of those records.

Restriction on Distribution or Use

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholder in accordance with Section 205(1) of
the Companies Act 1993. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s shareholder those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholder for
our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

S roeret o seLogaers

Chartered Accountants Auckland
27 January 2012



